
Tri-County  

Behavioral Healthcare 

Board of Trustees  

Meeting 

 
December 8, 2016 

















pg. 1 
 

 
 
 
 

Executive Director’s Report 

December 8, 2016 

Announcements 

 The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is on January 26, 2017.  It is possible that 
this meeting will be held at either the old Administration building, the new building 
located at 233 Sgt. Ed Holcomb Blvd. South, or at a location that is yet to be determined 
contingent upon the move date for the Center.  As a reminder, this is the Board meeting 
where we review the annual financial audit for the Center.   

 

 Regardless of the actual move date, a Grand Opening Ceremony for the new facility will 
be held between the December Board meeting and the January Board meeting.  I will 
make a decision on the date for the Grand Opening Ceremony before the Christmas 
break and will be communicating with you about that date then.  We look forward to 
showing the new building to our community.  

 

 Dr. Sneed is expected to be back at work later this month.  We are so grateful for the 
work he has done over the years and are eager to have him back.     

 

 Reminder: The National Council Conference will be held on April 3-5th in Seattle, 
Washington.  Conference registrations will need to be submitted by the end of the year, 
so please be thinking about whether you would like to attend.  If you know that you are 
interested in attending, please let Ms. Patti Atkins or I know.   

 

 Today’s cake is in honor of Ms. Gail Page who will have a birthday on December 27th.  

Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) 

 With the ‘transition’ that is going on as the staff at DADS join the Health and Human 
Services Commission (HHSC), there have been issues in receiving our General Revenue 
payments.  Our first quarter payment, due September 1st, was not received until 
November 10th, and our second quarter payment, due December 1st, has yet to be 
received.  We are hopeful that HHSC will be able to work through their internal issues 
related to payment and contract management in the coming months.  

 

 One of the pressing topics for our Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) staff 
right now is the status of the HCS Final Rule and its impact on Day Habilitation.  Our 



pg. 2 
 

Day Habilitation sites in Liberty, Cleveland and Huntsville provide services to clients with 
IDD, 9:00-3:30, Monday through Friday for a maximum of 30 hours per week.    
 
In order to receive Medicaid reimbursement from the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS) for providing home and community-based services, states must 
ensure that the services are delivered in settings that meet the new definition of home 
and community-based (HCB) ‘setting’. CMS has determined that Day Habilitation sites, 
like ours, are not ‘integrated’ with the community and are no longer in compliance with 
CMS guidelines.  CMS’ stated intention in disseminating the Final Rule was to maximize 
opportunities for people to have access to the benefits of community living, including 
receiving services in the most integrated setting and to ensure that Medicaid funding 
and policy support needed strategies for states in their efforts to meet their obligations 
under the ADA and the Supreme Court decision in Olmstead v. L.C., 527 U.S. 581 (1999). 
 
The State of Texas is currently recommending that a new service called ‘Community 
Integration’ replace Day Habilitation.  Community Integration would be allowed for 15 
hours a week rather than the 30 hours a week of Day Habilitation and would involve 
workers taking clients into community settings of the client’s choice one on one or in 
small groups.  Many families rely on this service to provide a much-needed break from 
their daily care of a loved one with IDD and several family members are able to work 
during the day because of Day Habilitation availability.   The impact on these families 
could be significant.  
 
Centers remain hopeful that there will be a change in heart by the Federal Government 
before the final implementation date of March 17, 2019, but the State of Texas does not 
currently have much choice but to develop a replacement service.  

Crisis Services 

 As I mentioned last month, Crisis Services remains very busy.  At one point in November, 
we set a record for the number of persons in the hospital at the same time who were 
funded by General Revenue (18), had a full PETC, and still had someone needing 
hospitalization in a local Emergency Room.  

 

 I may ask for your advocacy with our local legislative contingent as we work through this 
issue in the 85th Legislative Session.  With the State Hospitals essentially closed to civil 
admissions and the increasing population in our community, we are likely to run out of 
resources to meet these needs very quickly.    
 

 

  



pg. 3 
 

Building Updates 

 Mike Duncum will provide the Board with updates on the progress of the new building 
later today. 
 

 Listed below are additional updates regarding the buildings that we have on the market. 
 

o We sold the building at 2221 Commerce in Liberty (Herpin Building) on 
November 22nd.  After closing costs and realtor fees, we received $191,000 for 
the building, which will now become a mortuary. 

 
o We have a $1,750,000 offer for the River Pointe facilities in Conroe and have 

countered at $1,850,000. If the counter offer is accepted, we believe that the 
buildings would sell just after we move the staff to the new facility.  The 
prospective buyer has plans to remodel the facilities and rent them as 
commercial space. 

 
o A couple of buyers have looked at the William E. Hall facility on North Thompson. 

Also, believe it or not, one person has looked at the Administration building.  We 
remain hopeful that we will be able to sell the buildings quickly.  If you are aware 
of anyone in need of real estate in Conroe or Cleveland, please send them our 
way. 

 
 
 
 

 



CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT 

December 8, 2016 
 

FY 2016 Audit – We are continuing to work on the audit with the Scott, Singleton,  
Fincher and Company and should be in the final stages of completing the audit 
schedules.  The auditors were on site the week of November 1st through the 4th.  This 
visit was more focused on our financial statements and our fixed assets. We have not 
received information of areas of concern so we are hoping to have a clean audit again 
this year. 
 
Below I am listing a few of the items that were discussed in more detail. 
  

 1115 Waiver Funding - A significant amount of time was spent discussing the 
1115 Waiver projects and how the revenue continues to be delayed compared to 
the actual expenditures for the five programs that we are operating in this 
Waiver.  As long as this waiver is renewed we will need to be diligent in cash 
flow management to ensure the IGT is available and submitted to HHSC by the 
deadline.   

 Managed Care – Services in Managed Care has increased over the past couple 
of years.  The auditor has requested that we do an analysis of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts to ensure the amount booked is still adequate.   

 HUD Housing Accounts Receivable – We continue to monitor all Accounts 
Receivable amounts held by Tri-County for the ICI, MSHI and CSHI HUD Housing 
projects.  It has been a couple years since we have written off amounts that 
were determined by the auditors to be uncollectable.  Our current balances have 
not reached that threshold as of this time.   

   

Cost Accounting Methodology (CAM) – We have started pulling the service 
data for the FY 2016 CAM report.  With the move coming during the normal 

due date period, we are trying to get this completed prior to the end of the 

calendar year.  As was the requirements the last few years we are only 
required to submit the CAM to DSHS.  The due date for the preliminary 

report is January 27, 2017 and the final report is due on February 28, 2017.  
Over the next couple of weeks we will be spending time with program 

managers to review their service areas to ensure that accurate data is 
reflected in the cost centers. Prior to submission we will analyze the cost 

data and research any costs that have significant variances as compared 
with prior year’s data.   
 
 
FY 2016 HCS, TxHmL & ICF Cost Reports and MEI Cost Reports – We are also 
working on the HCS, Texas Home Living, ICF and MEI cost reports for FY 2016.  These 
are due in the Spring but as with the CAM report we want to get at least a preliminary 
report completed prior to the big move.   



 

Worker’s Compensation Audit – We have had our initial Worker’s 
Compensation auditor visit the beginning of October. At this meeting we 

gave them all the following information:  Payroll Journals for FY 2016, 
Individual earnings records, Quarterly Payroll Tax returns (941 & State 

Unemployment Reports), Amounts paid to subcontractors and Certificates of 
Insurance for Subcontractors. We will not have the final results of the audit 

for about 60 days.   
 
Surplus Sale of Excess Furniture and Equipment – With the move into the new 
facility coming in January we will be preparing for surplus sales of all excess furniture 
left in the Conroe buildings that are being vacated.  Prior to any sale we will be moving 
some of the decent furniture to Huntsville and Cleveland to replace items that have out 
lived their useful life span.  As a part of cleaning out these buildings we will be calling 
used furniture dealers that with any luck may buy everything and haul it away. 
 
Budget Revision – We are still planning the first budget revision to come to the Board 
for approval in about February.  This revision will have the approved furniture 
purchases, the sale of the vacated Liberty Life Skills building and all the restructured 
staffing and services that are implemented in the new facility. 

 



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Community Resources Report 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Community Resources Report 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

9



Community Resources Report 
October 28, 2016 – December 8, 2016 

Volunteer Hours: 
Location October 

Conroe 222.5 

Cleveland 0 

Liberty 33 

Huntsville 19 

Total 274.5 

 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES: 

11/1/16 Anadarko From The Heart Family Choices Day The Woodlands 

11/2/16 American Legion Board Meeting Conroe 

11/2/16 Veterans of Foreign Wars Meeting Conroe 

11/2/16 Conroe Noon Lions Club Luncheon Conroe 

11/3/16 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

11/4/16 Veterans Meeting with Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service Conroe 

11/5/16 Veterans Fishing Tournament – Seven Coves Bass Club Conroe 

11/5/16 Out of the Darkness Suicide Awareness Walk The Woodlands 

11/7/16 Trauma Affected Veterans Training Houston 

11/7/16 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Board Meeting Conroe 

11/8/16 Huntsville Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Huntsville 

11/8/16 Youth Mental Health First Aid – Peet Junior High School Conroe 

11/9/16 Veterans Treatment Court Meeting Conroe 

11/9/16 The Woodlands Taste of the Town 2017 The Woodlands 

11/10/16 Red, White & You Hiring Veterans Event/Benefits Fair Houston 

11/10/16 Montgomery County Business Women’s Mixer Conroe 

11/10/16 Anadarko Veteran’s Day Luncheon The Woodlands 

11/11/16 American Legion Veteran’s Day Ceremony Conroe 

11/11/16 Veterans of Foreign Wars Veteran’s Day Ceremony Conroe 

11/15/16 Magnolia Park Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Magnolia 

11/15/16 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 

11/16/16 Conroe Noon Lions Club Luncheon Conroe 

11/16/16 
Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Community Appreciation 
Luncheon 

Conroe 

11/16/16 Liberty Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Liberty 

11/17/16 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

11/17/16 Veterans Affairs Advisory Board Meeting Huntsville 

11/19/16 Veterans Wags and Warriors Event Magnolia 

11/21/16 
The Woodlands Chamber of Commerce Community Outreach Team 
Meeting 

The Woodlands 

11/22/16 Montgomery County Women’s Association Luncheon Conroe 

10



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES (cont’d): 
11/23/16 Conroe Noon Lions Club Luncheon Conroe 

11/28/16 Outpatient Competency Restoration Hospital Meeting Conroe 

11/29/16 Grace After Fire Women’s Veterans Group Meeting Conroe 

11/29/16 Accessible Space Geriatric Facility Suicide Prevention Presentation The Woodlands 

11/30/16 
Liberty County Health Awareness Coalition Meeting/Holiday 
Luncheon 

Liberty 

11/30/16 Veterans Treatment Court Meeting Conroe 

11/30/16 Conroe Noon Lions Luncheon Conroe 

12/1/16 Veterans Holiday Planning Event Meeting Liberty 

12/1/16 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

12/1/16 Parent Night for the Special Education Program  Huntsville 

12/5/16 Trauma Affected Veteran Training – Beaumont Law Enforcement Beaumont 

12/5/16 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Board Meeting Conroe 

12/6/16 
Montgomery County United Way Health & Wellness Impact Council 
Meeting 

The Woodlands 

12/7/16 Conroe Noon Lions Club Luncheon Conroe 

12/8/16 Huntsville Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Huntsville 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES:   

12/14/16 The Woodlands Taste of the Town Team Meeting The Woodlands 

12/14/16 Conroe Noon Lions Club Luncheon Conroe 

12/14/16 Outreach, Screening, Assessment and Referral Meeting League City 

12/15/16 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

12/20/16 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 

1/5/17 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

1/12/17 Huntsville Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Huntsville 

1/17/17 Conroe ISD Employee Fair Conroe 

1/17/17 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 

1/18/17 
Quarterly Multidisciplinary Behavioral Heath Team Meeting – 
Huntsville Memorial Hospital 

Huntsville 

1/19/17 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

2/2/17 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

2/9/17 Huntsville Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Huntsville 

2/16/17 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

2/20/17 Youth Mental Health First Aid – Conroe ISD School Counselors Conroe 

2/21/17 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 
 

11



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Consumer Services Report for October 2016 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Consumer Services Report for October 2016 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

12



Consumer Services Report 
October 2016 

 

 

Consumer Services 
Montgomery 

County 
Cleveland Liberty 

Walker 
County 

Total 

Crisis Services, MH Adults/Children 

Persons Screened, Intakes, Other Crisis Services 547 43 32 58 680 

Crisis and Transitional Services (LOC 0, LOC 5) 45 1 0 0 46 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Served 62 4 1 4 71 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Bed Days 264 8 2 19 293 

Contract Hospital Admissions 12 0 0 0 12 

Diversion Admits 12 0 0 1 13 

Total State Hospital Admissions 4 0 0 0 4 

 
Routine Services, MH Adults/Children 

Adult Service Packages (LOC 1m,1s,2,3,4) 1058 130 83 80 1351 

Adult Medication Services 822 76 57 97 1052 

Child Service Packages (LOC 1-4 and YC) 418 48 27 57 550 

Child Medication Services 223 17 12 21 273 

TCOOMMI (Adult Only) 108 18 14 10 150 

Adult Jail Diversions 5 0 0 0 5 

 

Persons Served by Program, IDD 

Number of New Enrollments for IDD Services 3 0 0 0 3 

Service Coordination 636 42 54 65 797 

 

Persons Enrolled in Programs, IDD 

Center Waiver Services (HCS, Supervised Living, TxHmL) 40 5 19 23 87 

Contractor Provided ICF-MR 18 11 11 6 46 

 

Substance Abuse Services 

Children and Youth Prevention Services 83 35 0 33 151 

Youth Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 0 0 0 0 0 

Adult Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 31 0 0 0 31 

 

Waiting/Interest Lists as of Month End 

Home and Community Based Services Interest List 1330 124 132 140 1726 

 

October Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1429 157 111 182 1879 

Child Mental Health Services 514 53 29 60 656 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 677 46 54 70 847 

Total Served by County 2620 256 194 312 3382 

 

September Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1423 170 129 184 1906 

Child Mental Health Services 484 45 23 65 617 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 680 47 60 71 858 

Total Served by County 2587 262 212 320 3381 

 

August Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1446 160 109 191 1906 

Child Mental Health Services 501 48 23 61 633 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 677 47 57 70 851 

Total Served by County 2624 255 189 322 3390 

 13



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Program Updates 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Program Updates 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

14



Program Updates 
October 28, 2016 – December 8, 2016 

Crisis Services 

1. The Texas Department of State Health Services completed a survey at the Psychiatric 
Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) in November.  No deficiencies were cited. 

2. The Crisis Intervention Response Team (CIRT) is now being notified by dispatch at The 
Conroe Police Department when individuals on Criminal Trespass Warrants (CTW) 
show up at local area businesses.  The majority of individuals on CTW’s have mental 
health and housing concerns.  The hope in involving CIRT is that individuals in need of 
mental health services will be diverted from jail.   

3. The PETC, Cypress Creek Hospital and the Montgomery County Attorney’s Office 
worked closely with one another on initiating an outpatient mental health commitment 
for a Tri-County consumer with a history of psychiatric hospitalizations. This process 
has not been pursued locally for many years. This intervention was recommended for 
this consumer since she has been non-compliant with outpatient services in the past 
and as a result quickly deteriorates.    

 

MH Adult Services 

1. Negotiations are under way with Lone Star College for their nursing students to 
complete clinical rotations at the PETC and Outpatient clinic in the spring semester.  

2. The Adult Outpatient Clinical Team have scheduled training in November provided by 
the state for Motivational Interviewing, Person-Centered Recovery Planning, Assertive 
Community Treatment Team Approach, and Supported Permanent Housing.  

3. Newly hired Adult Outpatient nurses are learning their roles on their new teams and 
are taking on additional responsibilities to make the team change successful. 

4. We are in the process of making changes to scheduling and staffing to allow for 
coverage following changes to walk-in clinic hours, which impacts availability of same 
day assessments. We are working to determine the most efficient staffing pattern that 
balances ability to provide same day evaluation with the needs of the Center.  

 

MH Child Services 

1. We are in the process of training many new Child and Youth (C&Y) Rehab Specialists, 
especially in the rural areas.  We expect our services in all rural clinics to 
increase significantly in 2017 as we’ve focused on growing and developing this team. 

2. It can be challenging to engage children, youth and families during the holiday season 
because of busy, disrupted schedules but staff have implemented strategies to keep 
individuals scheduled and focused on recovery. 

3. C&Y is very excited about moving into the new building and is very focused on 
preparing for the transition. 

 

15



Criminal Justice Services 

1. Jail Liaison assessed 40 individuals and coordinated the treatment of 75 others in 
Montgomery County Jail in September. 

2. The Jail Diversion program admitted three (3) individuals in October. 
3. TCOOMMI adult caseloads are at Contracted numbers and program metrics remain 

strong.  
4. The Outpatient Competency Restoration (OCR) program admitted one (1) in October to 

make seven (7) served and two (2) admitted in FY 2017.  
 

Substance Abuse Services 

1. The Substance Abuse Treatment program is actively working to increase caseload sizes 
by offering more same day assessments, integrating comprehensive case management 
services into treatment to engage the client, and making changes to the discharge 
policies to allow for greater consistency in discharge practices as well as to seek to 
retain individuals in treatment.  

2. The program has recently started implementation of a marketing strategy designed to 
raise awareness of program offerings both internally and with external entities with a 
goal of forming relationships both with agencies in the community and with internal 
staff in an attempt to facilitate movement into other programs to address client needs.  

3. This is a busy time of year for our Substance Abuse Prevention team as their schedules 
are full of school groups in all three (3) counties.  They are working closely with 
Children and Youth mental health staff to reach out to the parents of children and 
youth who are at risk for Substance and Tobacco Use.  

4. An LCDC has been hired to fill our vacant Youth Substance Abuse Treatment Manager 
position.  She brings a wealth of experience and ideas for structuring our program to 
provide more services.  

IDD Services 

1. IDD staff received required training for Person-Centered Thinking on November 15-
16th.  

2. IDD Provider staff has begun serving individuals in the Pre-Admission Screening and 
Resident Review (PASRR) program in the rural portion of our service area and staff 
hopes to begin serving qualifying individuals in Montgomery County in December.  

3. The Home and Community-based Services (HCS) program has one (1) vacancy at this 
time.  

4. A full-time LVN has been hired in the IDD Provider area to replace a part-time vacancy.  
We plan to implement an improved process of monitoring the health needs of those 
enrolled in HCS and Texas Home Living (TxHmL) IDD Provider programs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



Support Services 

1. Quality Management:    
a. The Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Quality Management has 

implemented a new process where each LMHA must conduct a comprehensive 
self-review and submit results two times per year.  The Administrator of Quality 
Management has been working on completing a Mental Health and Substance 
Abuse Self-Reviews which are due on December 16th and December 30th 
respectively. 

b. The Quality Management Department is currently interviewing for a Clinical 
Trainer position that will be focused on increasing clinical competency in areas 
such as Trauma Informed Care and Person Directed Planning. 

2. Veteran Affairs:    
a. Veteran Affairs staff took part in a Veteran’s Day Ceremony held at the Historical 

Flag Park in Conroe, Texas on November 11th. 
b. A Wags and Warriors event was held on November 19th and featured dogs on 

site for adoption as well as classes and trainers for veterans with pets. 
 

Community Activities 

1. The “Out of Darkness” Suicide Awareness Walk had 34 registered participants who 
together raised $580.00.  There were nine (9) licensed therapists who offered support 
to over 100 walk participants during the event. 

2. We have over 330 families this year needing assistance during the holidays.  The 
number of those in need have decreased this year, but so has the number of agencies 
and individuals adopting families.   

17



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve Revisions to General Administration Board 
Policies 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
As staff continues to update Board Policy statements, sixteen (16) General Administration 
Policy changes are recommended for approval by the Board.  In addition to formatting 
changes, the following modifications are recommended: 
 
C.3-Administration by Board-Formerly Administrative Structure-This policy was 
rewritten by Jackson Walker.  Staff and Jackson Walker believe the old policy was based on 
a contract document that no longer exists.  
 
C.4-Program Administration/Certification-The primary change was to tie the program 
review process to the Quality Management Plan that is approved by the Board.  
 
C.7-Meetings of the Board of Trustees-Formatting and minor changes only.  
 
C.8-Preparation of Agenda-Minor changes related to who receives the Board Agenda. 
 
C.9-Appointment of Executive Director-Section G added language about using Center 
system salary surveys for salary administration. 
 
C.10-Records Retention-Section C added language regarding confidential records 
management.  
 
C.11-Establishment and Maintenance of Board Policies-Formerly Establishment and 
Maintenance of the Manual of Board Policies-Changes made to allow for an ‘electronic 
manual’ rather than a physical manual. Added language affirming a signed electronic copy is 
as good as an original.  
 
C.13-Government Relations-Removed a reference to the ‘Boards Government Relations 
Committee’ and the requirement to report to commissioner’s courts annually.  
 
C.14-Tri-County Relationship with Non-Profit Corporations-Added language related 
to staff relationships with non-profit corporations.  
 
C.17-Availability/Accessibility of Services-Primary changes related to locations and 
mechanisms for advertising Center contact information.  
 
C.18-Planning Network Advisory Committee-Formerly the Public Responsibility 
Committee-Removed references to the Public Responsibility Committee and added 
references to the successor committee, the Planning Network Advisory Committee. 
 

 

 

18



 

 

 

 

Background Information (cont’d): 

 
C.21-Utilization of Volunteer at Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare-Formatting 
changes only.  
 
C.22-Environmental Quality and Safety-Contract required the addition of language 
related to the Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA requirements, and requirements for 
safety drills. 
 
C.23-Services to Board, Employees, and Families-A clause was added to acknowledge 
that the Board would not attempt to influence services offered to persons they know.  
 
C.25-Contraband Items-Revised language to ensure compliance with Texas Open Carry 
laws.   
 
C.26-Local Planning-Language added to reflect LMHA and LIDDA requirements for local 
planning.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Revised Board Policies (Markup Versions) 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve Revisions to General Administration Board Policies: C.3, C.4, C.7, C.8, 
C.9, C.10, C.11, C.13, C.14, C.17, C.18, C.21, C.22, C.23, C.25, C.26 
 

 

 

 

 

 

19



 Policy – C.3.2 – Administration by Board 

Page 1 of 2 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        September 27, 2007; December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Administrative Structure Administration by Board 
 
 

It is the policy of the Board to establish formal administrative procedures and practices which will 
assure that all officials are informed of federal, state and county operating requirements.  The 
administrative structure and Board functions will, of necessity, undergo changes to reflect 
modifications in public laws and in response to continuing efforts to improve the effectiveness and 
efficiency of program service.  While delegating specified authority and responsibility to the Executive 
Director, the Board remains ultimately accountable for all areas of operations under its administrative 
director. 
 
I. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the effective administration of the community center 

(Health and Safety Code Section 534.008). 
 
II. Statement of Functions 
 
 A. To provide the basis for program planning including: 
 

1. The development of information concerning the characteristics and needs of the 
community relative to mental health and mental retardation services. 

2. An analysis of need which identifies high risk and/or underserved populations as 
targets for special emphasis. 

3. A statement of program objectives, ordered by priority in response to identified 
needs as related availability of funding sources. 

4. A budget to structure the utilization of available resources necessary to fund the 
proposed programs. 

5. To establish and maintain a Public Responsibility Committee as mandated by 
Senate Bill 700. 

6. To establish other advisory committees as deemed necessary by the Board. 

20



 Policy – C.3.2 – Administration by Board 

Page 2 of 2 

7. To provide to the public at least annually general information concerning the 
Center’s programs and costs of operation. 

 
B. To establish mental health and mental retardation services directly and/or through 

contractual arrangements stressing accessibility, availability, acceptability, and 
continuity of care, based on the financial capability of the Center. 

 
C. To establish and maintain a set of policies which gives guidance for Tri-County and 

provides the Executive Director with a format for the establishment of procedures for 
operation. 

 
D. To assure that program operations, policies and procedures are in compliance with 

local, state and federal statutes and regulations. 
 
E. To develop and execute plans for the continued financial stability and the acquisition of 

adequate resources to accomplish the purposes and objectives for the Center. 
 
F. To establish an ongoing quality assurance program that provides for appropriate review 

systems which monitor client care. 
 
G. To develop and undertake a plan for the periodic training of Board Members which will 

enable them to carry out the functions of policy planning and administration of 
TriCounty. 

 
H. To assure effective coordination with other health and social service providers in the 

community to avoid unnecessary duplication of services and achieve maximum benefit 
from existing resources. 

 
I. To promote the objectives of Tri-County to the community by utilizing the media and 

other forms of communication. 
 
J. To recruit, select, and retain an Executive Director. 
 
K. To review and approve an annual budget which allows for the establishment and 

maintenance of Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) programs. 
 
L. To review and approve at least quarterly, monthly reports of programmatic program 

census and fiscal activities. 

21



 Policy – C.4.1 – Program Accreditation/Certification 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Program Accreditation/Certification 
 
 

It is a the policy of the Board of Trustees that Tri-County MHMR Services Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-
County” or “Center”) will operate in compliance of minimum standards as published by the Texas 
Department of Aging and Disability Services and the Texas Department of State Health Services, Texas 
Health and Human Services Commission and as stated by the Performance Contracts under which Tri-
County receives is presently receiving funds. 
 
I. To seek and maintain approval from all other funding sources, Tri-County is committed to 

maintaining a high quality of service.  Tri-County policies and procedures are an expression of 
that intention. 
 

II. Tri-County will have a program to ensure that staff are regularly reviewing programs to ensure 
compliance with expectations from funders.  This review will be further described in the Quality 
Management Plans which are reviewed and approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 

III. In developing its criteria and standards, Tri-County considered a wide variety of information on 
professional practice and service delivery.  Adherence to those criteria and standards should 
result in a program which can meet the standards promulgated by the Texas Department of 
Aging and Disability Services, the Texas Department of State Health Services and other 
approved funding sources. 
  

22



 Policy – C.7.1 – Meetings of Board of Trustees 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Meetings of Board of Trustees 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that: 
 

A. The Board shall meet at least six (6) times per annum. 
 

B. A majority of the members of the Board of Trustees constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 

 
C. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson.  Such calls shall specify the time, 

place, and subjects to be considered and shall comply with all aspects of the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
D. It shall be the Chairperson’s duty to call a meeting of the Board of Trustees when 

requested in writing to do so by two (2) or more members. 
  

23



 Policy – C.8.1 – Preparation of Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Preparation of Agenda 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that: 
 

A. Agendas for all Board Meetings shall be prepared and posted in compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Law Act and other appropriate laws and regulations. 

 
B. The responsibility for the preparation of each Board agenda rests with the Board 

Chairperson and the Executive Director. 
 
C. The preparation of the Board agenda and appropriate supporting document materials 

shall be completed and distributed to the individual Board Members and appropriate 
staff sufficiently ahead of time to allow the Board Members to prepare for the meeting. 

 
D. The agenda shall be distributed to at least the following: 

1. Individual Board Members; 
2. Executive Director and other directors; 
3. Sponsoring Agencies (County Judges);  
4. Legal Counsel; and,  
5. Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare’s (“Tri-County” or “Center”) service locations.  

 
E. The agenda is available to other stakeholders upon request, including the Health and 

Human Services Commission or other funders.  

24



 Policy – C.9.1 – Appointment of Executive Director 

Page 1 of 2 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Appointment of Executive Director 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that: 
 

A. The Executive Director exercises sole authority and responsibility for the management 
of the affairs of Tri-County MHMR Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) in 
accordance with the established Board aims, policies and resolutions. 

  
B. The Executive Director, preferably, should have a graduate level degree; at least five 

years experience as a successful administrator in a health care environment; the ability 
to interface effectively with mental health and health care professionals and the 
community at large; proven skills focused on the non-clinical areas of fiscal 
management, community relations, policy and program development, development and 
implementation of management information systems, knowledge of State and Federal 
grants and their application and compliance and overall personnel performance. 

 
II. The responsibilities of the Executive Director include: 
 

A. The implementation of programs, policies, and priorities established by the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
B. Performance of management functions which will assure that program services will be 

available, accessible, and acceptable to the citizens served by Tri-County and 
coordinated to promote continuity of care. 

 
C. Delegation of authority and accountability for program functions to Tri-County staff who 

are assigned managerial responsibilities. 
 

25



 Policy – C.9.1 – Appointment of Executive Director 

Page 2 of 2 

D. Coordination of activities with other governmental, public, private groups and agencies 
concerned with the planning and delivery of health and social services. 
 

E. Performance and administrative functions which will provide accountability for funds 
received and expended and assure that all fiscal regulations are satisfied. 
 

F. Implementation of an integrated clinical record system for all Tri-County programs and 
contract agencies which is designed to provide access to all past and current 
information regarding the health and treatment status of any consumer and which 
maintains safeguards to preserve confidentiality and protects the rights of consumers. 
 

G. Implementation of a personnel management program which would address such 
functions as recruitment, staff development, salary structure, termination, complaint 
procedures, pension and related employee benefits.  Salaries and benefits provided 
should be comparable to those prevailing in the community, or based upon like 
positions in other Community Centers for similar services. 
 

H. Utilization of statistical information for determining needs, planning services, 
monitoring staff and program activity and evaluating the attainment of objectives. 
 

I. Preparation of operational plans and procedures for project implementation which will 
enable the measurement of progress towards objectives. 
 

J. Implementation of an effective community relations function including community 
information and education. 
 

K. Ensures compliance with House Bill 3, of the 59th Texas Legislature, as amended, Rules 
of the Commissioner governing Texas Community Mental Health Mental Retardation 
Center, and other applicable federal and state rules, regulations and standards. 
 

L. Preparation of Tri-County procedures to ensure compliance with Board policies. 
  

26



 Policy – C.10.2 – Records Retention 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        October 31, 1996; December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Records Retention 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that the Executive Director shall be responsible for 
insuring that: 

 
A. A retention schedule shall be maintained by Tri-County MHMR Services Behavioral 

Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) in compliance with state, local and federal 
authorities and accrediting agencies. 

 
B. All Tri-County MHMR records shall be kept in accordance with the retention schedule. 

developed by Tri-County MHMR Services. 
 
C. Confidential records which are no longer required to be kept will be disposed of using a 

mechanism that is compliant with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996 and other related laws. The procedures for retention and destruction of 
records shall be followed as developed by Tri-County MHMR Services. 

27



 Policy – C.11.1 – Establishment and Maintenance of the Manual of Board Policies 

Page 1 of 2 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016 
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  November 16, 1983 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Esablishment and Maintenance of Board Policies 
 
 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Tri-County Mental Health and Mental Retardation Services 
Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) to establish and maintain a Manual of Board Policies 
in order to provide a systematic method for issuing administrative policies, rules and regulation within 
the Agency.    
 
I. It is the responsibility of the Board to establish Tri-County Administrative and Operational 

policies. The Board will: 
 
A. Direct the Executive Director to assess all current policies annually and review any 

proposed Policy(s) with the Board Chair. 
 

B. Direct the development of Issue new or revised existing policies as appropriate. 
 
C. These Policy Statements will approved by the Board and signed by a Board Officer 

(typically the Chair). 
 
D. Policies will be kept in a manner that is easy to access by Center staff. 
 

II. It is the responsibility of the Executive Director to develop and implement procedures for 
assuring compliance with Tri-County wide policy and to recommend additions and/or 
amendments to policies for Board action as appropriate. The Executive Director will: 
  
A. Maintain and/or update policies. 

 
B. Assist in the interpretation of Tri-County policy. 

 

28



 Policy – C.11.1 – Establishment and Maintenance of the Manual of Board Policies 

Page 2 of 2 

C. Refer to the Board concerns, issues and problems which require policy formulation. 
 

D. Will interpret policy for administrative operations. 
 

III. An electronic scan of the signed documents is considered as good as the original.   

29



 Policy – C.13.1 – Government Relations 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  March 28, 1984 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Government Relations 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that: 
 

A. The Tri-County MHMR Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) Board will 
initiate and maintain communication with government officials on the national, state, 
county and municipal level. 

 
B. Board Members will be responsible for taking the lead in their local communities.  They 

will report, as directed in the by-laws, at least once a year to the Commissioner’s Court 
of their respective counties as requested by the Court.  They will be the primary contact 
with local governing boards. 

 
C. The Board’s Government Relations Committee will take the lead in communicating at 

the state level and will assist at the local level. 
 

D. The Board’s Executive Director will provide the staff assistance necessary to enable good 
communications.  However, the staff will make presentations only with the approval of 
the Executive Director. 

 
E. The Board members will keep the Executive Director informed as to both opportunities 

and problems that surface through these communications in their respective counties. 
 

F. The Executive Director will keep the Board members informed as to both opportunities 
and problems that surface in their respective counties. 

30



 Policy – C.14.1 – Tri-County Relationship with Non-Profit Corporations 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  January 29, 1987 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Tri-County Relationship with Non-Profit Corporations 
 
 

I. It is the policy of Tri-County MHMR Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) to 
cooperate formally and informally with non-profit corporations and their Boards of Trustees in 
providing the best possible programs in communities within the Tri-County service area. 

 
II. The Executive Director shall direct staff to participate in meetings with these non-profit 

corporations to ensure that non-profit corporations are aware of Tri-County’s services and to 
ensure best value in the community by avoiding duplication of similar services.  

  

31



 Policy – C.17.2 – Availability/Accessibility of Services 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  October 17, 1985 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Availability/Accessibility of Services 
 
 

I. Services will be available to all residents of the Tri-County Mental Health Mental Retardation 
Services  Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) service area without regard to 
service area without regard race, color, disability, national origin, sex, religion, or age.  race, 
sex, creed, national origin, religion, or handicapping condition. 

 
II. Mental Health and Mental Retardation Services are to be available on a scheduled and 

emergency basis throughout the service area.  Procedures will be developed which ensure that 
waiting time for admission to services is minimized. 

 
III. Service sites will be located in various population centers throughout the service area and will 

be advertised in appropriate manner for the service area including advertisement on the Center 
website, internet search engines, social media and/or listed in print media including all 
telephone directories in the service area.  The Executive Director will assure public knowledge 
of services through the use of a variety of public and media presentations. 

 
IV. Counseling and therapy Services will be available on a flexible schedule, including evenings, to 

meet the needs of the consumers.  Emergency services will be available at all times. 

32



 Policy – C.18.1 – Planning Network Advisory Committee(s) 

Page 1 of 2 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  April 9, 1988 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Public Responsibility Planning Network Advisory Committee(s)  
 
 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Tri-County that a Public Responsibility Committee will be 
established and maintained in accordance with the rule on Public Responsibility Committees in 
Facilities and Center, Chapter 403, Sub-Chapter P of the Rules of the Commissioner of the Texas 
Department of Mental Health/Mental Retardation.   
 
The Planning Network Advisory Committee(s) Public Responsibility Committee shall be an 
independent, impartial third party mechanism(s) which is/are charged with protecting, preserving, 
promoting, and advocating for the health, safety, welfare, and other legal and human rights of clients 
served by Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”).  
 
The Public Responsibility Committee shall consist of seven members with at least one member from 
each county in Tri-County’s catchment area.  All activities engaged in by or pertaining to the Public 
Responsibility Committee shall be conducted in accordance with the Rules of the Commissioner of 
TDMHMR.   
 
I. The Tri-County Board of Trustees shall appoint, charge and support one or more Planning and 

Network Advisory Committees (PNACs) necessary to perform the committee’s advisory 
functions, as follows:  

 
A. The PNAC shall be composed of at least nine members, 50 percent of whom shall be 

clients or family members of clients, including family members of children or youth, or 
another composition approved by HHSC; 
 

B. PNAC members shall be objective and avoid even the appearance of conflicts of interest 
in performing the responsibilities of the committee;  

 

33



 Policy – C.18.1 – Planning Network Advisory Committee(s) 

Page 2 of 2 

C. The Center may develop alliances with other LMHA/LIDDAs to form regional PNACs; and  
1. The Center may develop a combined mental health and Intellectual and 

Developmental Disability (IDD) and Mental Health (MH) PNAC.  
2. If the Center develops such a PNAC, the 50 percent client and family member 

representation shall consist of equal numbers of mental health and IDD clients 
and family members. Expanded membership may be necessary to ensure equal 
representation. 

 
II. The Executive Director of Tri-County shall appoint a staff liaison to the PNAC(s) PRC, whose 

responsibility it shall be to provide training for the Committee, obtain needed support services 
for the Committee and serve as the primary interface between the Committee and Tri-County 
Board of Trustees. 

 
A. The Center PNAC liaison(s) shall establish outcomes and reporting requirements for 

each PNAC;  
 
B. The Center PNAC liaison(s) shall ensure all PNAC members receive initial and ongoing 

training and information necessary to achieve expected outcomes. Contractor shall 
ensure that the PNAC receives training and information related to 25 TAC Chapter 412, 
Subchapter P (Provider Network Development) and that the PNAC is actively involved in 
the development of the Consolidated Local Service Plan and the Provider Network 
Development Plan;  

 
C. The Center PNAC liaison(s) shall ensure the PNAC has access to all information regarding 

total funds available through this Statement of Work for services in each program area 
and required performance targets and outcomes;  

 
D. The Center PNAC liaison(s)  shall ensure the PNAC receives a written copy of the final 

annual budget and biennial plan for each program area as approved by Contractor’s 
Board of Trustees, and a written explanation of any variance from the PNAC’s 
recommendations; and 

 
E. The Center PNAC liaison(s)  shall ensure that the PNAC has access to and reports to 

Center’s Board of Trustees at least quarterly on issues related to: the needs and 
priorities of the LSA; implementation of plans and contracts; and the PNAC’s actions 
that respond to special assignments given to the PNAC by the local board.  

34



 Policy – C.21.1 – Utilization of Volunteers at TCBHC 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  March 20, 1985 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Utilization of Volunteers Staff in at Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare (“Tri-County” or “Center”) Board of 
Trustees, that volunteers staff shall be utilized in every possible and practical phase of Tri-
County’s operations and programs. 
 

II. The Board recognizes that a well defined volunteer Staff program develops and enhances 
strong community awareness and support of individual Tri-County programs as well as the Tri-
County system of services. 
 

III. Further, the Board values the financial impact a developed volunteer staff program can have on 
Tri-County’s budget. 

 

35



 Policy – C.22.1 – Environmental Quality and Safety 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  October 17, 1985 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Environmental Quality and Safety 
 
 

It is the policy of the Board that services should be provided using facilities, equipment, methods and 
procedures which promote the health, safety and well-being of staff and consumers.  Procedures will 
be developed which address housekeeping, maintenance and preventive maintenance of facilities and 
equipment, emergency and disaster plans for each program site and other safety issues. 
 
I. Whenever possible, programs will be housed in facilities which enhance the intent of the 

program and reflect implementation of the Principle of Normalization. 
 
A. Building and associated properties will be made compliant with the Texas Accessibility 

Standards (TAS), Texas Health and Safety Code, Texas Department of Licensing and 
Regulation requirements, National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Life Safety Code 
or the International Fire Code. 
 

B. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan (ADA Plan) 
will be reviewed by Center staff at least annually and updated as necessary, and will 
ensure that the following information is posted prominently at each service location:  
1. The name, address, telephone number, Telecommunications Device for the Deaf 

(TDD) telephone number, fax number and e-mail address of the ADA and the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 Coordinator(s);  

2. The location at which the ADA Plan may be viewed; and  
3. The process for requesting and obtaining copies of the ADA Plan. 

 
II. Safety drills will be practiced on a regular basis to ensure client and staff readiness for facility 

emergencies.  

36



 Policy – C.23.2 – Services to Board, Employees, and Families 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  September 25, 1986 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        April 30, 2007; December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Services to Board, Employees, and Families 
 
 

I. The Board of Trustees recognizes the ethical and clinical issues involved in providing 
therapeutic and psychiatric services to Board of Trustee members, employees, and their 
families and directs the Executive Director to develop procedures which provide adequate 
safeguards (which includes making information available regarding alternate services), such 
that professional ethics and the clinical process are not compromised by the dual relationships. 

 
II. The Board of Trustees further recognizes that services may be sought by Board members, their 

families or relatives, or friends.  In these situations, it is the Policy of the Board that Board 
members refrain from attempting to influence treatment decisions or care. 

37



 Policy – C.25.1 – Contraband Items 

Page 1 of 2 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  December 7, 1995 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Contraband Items 
 
 

I. It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that:  
 

A. Firearms, Weapons, alcoholic beverages, and/or illicit drugs of any type shall not be 
brought onto the ground or into any of Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare’s (“Tri-County” 
or Center”) facilities by any person except for persons with appropriate licenses, 
persons with the right to carry, or law enforcement officials in the performance of their 
duties. 

 
B. The Executive Director will be responsible for ensuring procedures are developed as 

appropriate and that the required posting (per Texas Concealed Handgun Permit Law, 
Texas Civil Statutes, Article 4413 (29ee) are in place at all facilities of Tri-County. 

 
C. For the purpose of this policy, weapons may include, but not be limited to, the 

following: 
1. Handguns; 
2. Machine guns; 
3. Firearms of any kind; 
4. Firearm silencers; 
5. Explosive weapons and/or devices; 
6. Knuckles; 
7. Knives 4 inches in length or longer; or 
8. Chemical-dispensing devices (for illegal use of); 
9. Any other item used in a threatening manner. 

 
D. Persons bringing contraband items into Center facilities may be asked to take the item 

to their vehicle or may be asked to leave the property. 

38



 Policy – C.25.1 – Contraband Items 

Page 2 of 2 

E. Center procedure shall exist to guide staff in interactions with persons related to 
contraband items. 

39



 Policy – C.26.1 – Local Planning 

Page 1 of 1 

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 
 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY      

 Patti Atkins, Chair 
 
 December 8, 2016   
 Date 

 
ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE:                  February 27, 1997 

 
REVISION DATE(S):        December 8, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:        Local Planning 
 
 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that, as part of their Local Mental Health Authority (LMHA) and 
Local Intellectual and Developmental Disability Authority (LIDDA) responsibilities, local planning efforts 
shall focus on the comprehensive functions of mental health and intellectual/developmental disability 
services for people mental retardation services in Montgomery, Walker and Liberty Counties.  Such 
local planning ensures a highly participatory process exists to identify local needs and priorities which 
shall guide program development, resource development, and resource allocation. 
 

I. Plans will be in a format as directed by the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC).  
 

II. Local Planning is a leadership responsibility which shall be formulated through input from staff, 
consumers, families, and community leaders.  Stakeholder input shall be gathered through the 
use of a Planning Network and Advisory Committee(s), community meetings, and customer 
satisfaction surveys. and Leadership Forums. 

 

III. Plans will be submitted to the state and will be posted on Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare’s 
(“Tri-County” or Center”) website with revision dates noted as appropriate for each plan 
revision. 

 
IV. Information gathered through these processes shall guide the Board of Trustees in Strategic 

Planning efforts, as well as in the effective and efficient use of resources. 

40



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Personnel Report for October 2016 
 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Personnel Report for October 2016 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

41



Oct-16 FY17 FY16

Number of Active Employees 327 331

Number of Monthly Separations 8 8

Number of Separations YTD 21 13

Year to Date Turnover Rate 6% 4%

October Turnover 2% 2%

Separations by Reason
October 

Separations
Year to Date

Retired 0 2

Involuntarily Terminated 2 3

Neutral Termination 1 2

Dissatisfied 0 0

Lack of Support from Administration 0 0

Micro-managing supervisor 0 0

Lack of growth opportunities/recognition 0 0

Difficulty learning new job 0 0

Co-workers 0 0

Work Related Stress/Environment 0 0

RIF 0 3

Deceased 0 0

Pay 0 0

Health 0 0

Family 0 1

Relocation 1 1

School 0 0

Personal 0 1

Unknown 0 2

New Job 4 6

Total Separations 8 21

Personnel Report October 2016

Total Applications received in October = 345

Total New Hires for the month of October =  9

Total New Hires Year to Date =  21

62%14%

14%

10%

Year to Date Voluntary, Involuntary, 
RIF and Neutral Separations

Voluntary 
Separations

Involuntary 
Separations

Reduction in Force 
(RIF)

Neutral Separations

62%

25%

13%

October Voluntary, Involuntary, RIF and 
Neutral Separations

Voluntary 
Separations

Involuntary 
Separations

Reduction in Force 
(RIF)

Neutral Separations

42



Management Team # of Employees
Monthly 

Separations
Year to Date 
Separations

% October % YTD

Evan Roberson 15 1 1 7% 7%

Millie McDuffey 41 3 5 7% 12%

Amy Foerster 6 0 0 0% 0%

Tanya Bryant 8 0 0 0% 0%

Behavioral Health Director 127 2 9 2% 7%

Breanna Robertson 53 0 1 0% 2%

Kelly Shropshire 32 0 1 0% 3%

Kathy Foster 38 2 3 5% 8%

Kenneth Barfield 7 0 1 0% 14%

Total 327 8 21

Separation by EEO Category # of Employees
Monthly 

Separations
Year to Date % October

% Year to 
Date

Supervisors & Managers 23 0 2 0% 9%  

Medical (MD,DO, LVN, RN, APN, PA, 

Psychologist) 34 1 1 3% 3%

Professionals (QMHP) 89 2 8 2% 9%  

Professionals (QIDP) 26 0 1 0% 4%

Licensed Staff (LCDC, LPC…) 21 0 0 0% 0%

Business Services (Accounting) 11 0 0 0% 0%

Central Administration (HR, IT, Executive 

Director) 26 0 0 0% 0%

Program Support(Financial Counselors, QA, 

Training, Med. Records) 32 3 6 9% 19%

Nurse Technicians/Aides 19 0 0 0% 0%  

Service/Maintenance 20 1 1 5% 5%

Direct Care (HCS, Respite, Life Skills) 26 1 2 4% 8%

Total 327 8 21

62%12%

13%

13%

October Separtations by Tenure

0-1

1-2

2-3

3-5

5-10

10-15

15 + Years

38%

24%

14%

9%

5%
10%

Year to Date Separations by Tenure

0-1

1-2

2-3

3-5

5-10

10-15

15 + Years

43



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Texas Council Risk Management Fund Claims 
Summary for October 2016 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Texas Council Risk Management Fund Claims Summary for October 2016 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

44



 

45



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Texas Council Quarterly Board Meeting Update 
 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Texas Council has requested that Center representatives give updates to Trustees 
regarding their quarterly Board meeting.  A verbal update will be given by Sharon Walker. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Texas Council Staff Report 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

46



TEXAS COUNCIL of COMMUNITY CENTERS 
Board of Directors Meeting 

August 12-13, 2016 
 

Issues & information from Chief Executive Officer, Danette Castle – pp. 3-17 
1. Engagement in key initiatives & priorities -- p. 3: 

 Meetings/negotiations with state officials & legislative offices and 
  Meetings with advocacy organizations & associations 

2. Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) & Telemedicine – pp. 3-4 
3. HB 910 (Open Carry) –p. 5 
4. SB 1507 (Forensic Director, Regional Allocations of Inpatient Beds, 

Local Utilization Review Protocol, Training for Judges and Attorneys 
and OSAR) – pp. 5-6 

5. Legislative Budget Board Review:  LMHA/Local Jail Interface Survey – 
pp. 7-9 

6. State Budget FY2016-17 – pp.10-12 
7. Health and Human Services Agencies Transformation, Transition 

Legislative Oversight Committee – pp. 12-15 
8. Continue Engaging Local and State Elected Officials – p. 15 
9. Federal Update – pp. 15-16 
10. Public Information – Special Interest Group – p. 17 

 
OVERVIEW of TEXAS COUNCIL STAFF REPORT: 

 Table of Contents on p. 2 identifies specific topics for quick access by reader 
 Three major areas covered:  Healthcare Policy, Mental Health & Substance 

Use Disorders, & Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 
1. 1115 Waiver – Gov. Abbott requested a five-year extension from 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS).  HHSC website 
with renewal application on p. 18.                                                                 
Requirement by CMS of HHSC -- Evaluation of Texas uncompensated 
care costs and Medicaid hospital payments; draft report findings; & 
work Texas Council conducting regarding 1115 Waiver extension 

2. Texas Council Executive Directors’ Consortium reviewed & approved 
an Endorsed Measurement Strategy approach to clinical quality 
measures 

3. SAMHSA Grant – identified as a legislative priority by Texas Council, 
84th Leg. Included Rider 79 in state budget 

4. Focus of quarterly meetings with Managed Care Workgroup & 
monthly meetings with Managed Care Steering Committee was 
common member issues, including re-enrollment challenges, claim 
processing & utilization management guidelines, and preparing for 
the STAR Kids Program for children with disabilities.   Quick Reference 
Guide for Managed Care development, update plans and present 
chapters found on p. 24.  Two web-sites for more detail information  
listed.  Medicaid Managed Care Rules identified & discussed.  Note:  

HANDOUT



extension of deadline for Medicaid provider re-enrollment by six 
months – p. 26 

5. Notations on issues/events impacting Transition Medicine from 2013 
– June 2015 

6. Texas Council and Center representatives with DSHS develop a 
method to identify and report Co-Occurring Psychiatric Substance Use 
Disorder (COPSD).   Information & website to methodology developed 
are presented. 

7. SB 133 Mental Health First Aid Initiative (MHFA)– Information 
regarding SB 133 which amended HB 3793 as well as TX Education 
Administration adopting MHFA to meet legislative intent for SB 460.  
Specific purpose and individuals serving on the MHFA Steering 
Committee are identified. 

8. Crisis Services includes proposed amendment from DSHS to the 
Extended Observation Unit (EOU) section of the Crisis Services 
Standards.  Differences between present and proposed standards are 
listed on p. 36. 

9. Eligibility criteria for expansion populations to the HCBS-AMH (a 
state-wide program that provides home and community-based 
services for adults with serious mental illness in lieu of remaining 
long-term residents of in-patient facilities is identified and discussed 
on p. 37. 

10.   DSHS is implementing First Episode Psychosis (FEP) pilot focused on 
evidence-based programs designed to meet the needs of individuals 
with early onset psychotic disorders.  Seven Centers are currently 
participating in the pilot. 

11. HHSC & DSHS developed the Youth Empowerment Services (YES) 
Waiver –reminder of what YES established to do and policy changes 
which requires new billing guidelines.  Additional developments have 
made increased services available to children & youth in YES waiver 
services. 

12. A series of initiatives have begun at HHSC & DFPS to expand 
community collaboration and enhance mental health services for 
children in foster care.  The Children’s Policy Council includes 
relatives of consumers of long-term care and health programs for 
children, and representatives of community, faith, business and other 
organizations.  Current members are identified as well as area of state 
each individual represents.  The members of the Children’s Special 
Interest Group is also included.  Melissa Zemencsik serves on this 
community as the representative for TriCounty. 

13. An overview of significant IDD issues includes General Revenue 
Targets, Crisis respite and behavioral intervention funding for people 
with IDD, recent updates, allocation error, Crisis respite plan review. 

14. The brief developed to delineate the district roles of LIDDA case 
management and managed care service coordination is outlined and 
website for additional information are given for use as an educational 

HANDOUT



tool during discussions when visiting with legislative staff/elected 
officials. 

15. Table of the redesign of IDD Services and Supports for FY 2014-14/FY 
2015-16 presented.  SB 7 implementation activities are discussed. 

16. The recent highlights of Community First Choice (CFC) are outlines as 
well as identifying future events for CFC. 

17. PASRR and related local IDD authority responsibilities are discussed 
along with a table of DADS expectation for PASRR Compliance.   

18. Requirements for Medicaid Home and Community-based Settings are 
outlined and discussed.  Recent updates precede the information on 
background, purpose, compliance requirements, and statewide 
transition plan.  The Texas Council comments on Statewide Transition 
Plan are found on p. 58 for our use in discussions regarding this issue. 

 
 
 
 

  

HANDOUT



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve October 2016 Financial Statements 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
October 2016 Financial Statements 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve October 2016 Financial Statements 
 

 

120



October 2016 Financial Summary 

Revenues for October 2016 were $2,624,821 and operating expenses were $2,394,901 
resulting in a gain in operations of $229,920.  Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses for October were $224,293 resulting in a gain of $5,627.  Total revenues were 
104.14% of the monthly budgeted revenues and total expenses were 102.81% of the 
monthly budgeted expenses. 
 
Year to date revenues are $5,220,562 and operating expenses are $4,899,162 leaving 
excess operating revenues of $321,400. YTD Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses are $270,059 resulting in a gain YTD of $51,341. Total revenues are 101.97% of 
the YTD budgeted revenues and total expenses are 101.03% of the YTD budgeted expenses 
 
REVENUES 
YTD Revenue items that are below the budget by more than $10,000: 

Revenue Source YTD 
Revenue 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

No items to report      

 
 
EXPENSES 
YTD Individual line expense items that exceed the YTD budget by more than $10,000: 

Expense Source YTD 
Expenses 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

Building Repairs & Maintenance 51,154 37,582 1.36% 13,572 

Contract EduCare 359,393 331,406 1.08% 27,987 

Fixed Asset – F&E 135,385 0.00 0% 135,385 

Vehicle – Repair & Maint 21,488 7,903 2.72% 13,585 

 
Building Repairs & Maintenance – As we have seen for many years, we continue to have a 
large amount of repairs to the existing buildings.  This expense went over budget mostly 
due to lengthy summer weather causing the need for air conditioning repairs. There were 
also some roofing repairs that occurred during this time period. 
 
Contract EduCare – This line item represents the expense side of the ICF program.  This is a 
cost reimbursement program so therefore when the expense is high it is offset with an 
increase on the revenue side as well.  
 
Fixed Asset – Furniture & Equipment – As approved by the Board at the September Board 
meeting, Tri-County paid a deposit on the purchase of the furniture for the new Conroe 

121



facility.  This line will be adjusted at the mid-year revision to reflect the total approved cost 
of the furniture.   
 
Vehicle – Repair & Maintenance – This line item represents upkeep and maintenance of our 
center vehicles.  Although we have purchased some new vehicles over the last few years, 
we still have some very high mileage vehicles that are in our fleet and require repairs to 
keep moving.  Later in this fiscal year, after we settled down a bit, we will do an analysis of 
our fleet and determine if these vehicles should be retired.   
 
 
 
 

122



TOTALS  COMBINED
FUNDS 

TOTALS  
COMBINED 

FUNDS Increase
October 2016 September 2016 (Decrease)

  
 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
Imprest Cash Funds 3,135                         3,185                     (50)                       
Cash on Deposit-General Fund 4,944,540                   6,603,841              (1,659,301)            
Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                       
Accounts Receivable 2,019,186                   1,753,363              265,824                
Inventory 6,092                         6,241                     (149)                      
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,972,954                   8,366,629              (1,393,675)            

FIXED ASSETS 15,648,025                 9,104,534              6,543,490             

OTHER ASSETS 78,542                       60,966                   17,576                  

TOTAL ASSETS 22,699,520$              17,532,129$          5,167,392$          

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,053,091                   1,085,273              (32,182)                 

NOTES PAYABLE 607,292                     607,292                 -                       

DEFERRED REVENUE 468,532                     1,936,814              (1,468,282)            

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 389,273                     409,625                 (20,352)                 
Note Payable Prosperity Bank 580,456                     593,309                 (12,853)                 
First Financial loan tied to CD 1,100,000                   -                        1,100,000             
First Financial Construction Loan 3,113,876                   -                        3,113,876             

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES FOR
General Fund (1,889,800)                 41,914                   (1,931,714)            

FUND EQUITY
RESTRICTED
     Net Assets Reserved for Debt Service (5,183,606)                 (1,002,934)             (4,180,672)            
     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                     963,631                 -                       
COMMITTED
     Net Assets-Property and Equipment 15,648,025                 9,104,534              6,543,490             
     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 678,112                     678,112                 -                       
     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions -                             2,136,013              (2,136,013)            
     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,472,221                   1,500,000              (27,779)                 
     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                     516,833                 -                       
ASSIGNED
     Reserved for Workers' Compensation 274,409                     274,409                 -                       
     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve 12,332                       6,166                     6,166                    
     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles 100,000                     100,000                 -                       
     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (607,292)                    (607,292)                -                       
UNASSIGNED
     Unrestricted and Undesignated 3,402,135                   (811,571)                4,213,706             
TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 22,699,520$              17,532,129$          5,167,392$          

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

For the Month Ended October 31, 2016

123



Memorandum Only

 General 

Operating   Final

Funds August 2016

 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS

Imprest Cash Funds 3,135                   3,165                       

Cash on Deposit-General Fund 4,944,540             5,928,627                 

Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                       -                           

Accounts Receivable 2,019,186             1,657,209                 

Inventory 6,092                   9,877                       

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,972,954             7,598,878                 

FIXED ASSETS 15,648,025           7,091,888                 

OTHER ASSETS 78,542                 49,749                     

-                           

22,699,520$         14,740,515$             

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,053,091             1,103,286                 

NOTES PAYABLE 607,292                549,129                    

DEFERRED REVENUE 468,532                (889,779)                  

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR

Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 389,273                670,521                    

Note Payable Prosperity Bank 580,456                757,743                    

First Financial loan tied to CD 1,100,000             -                           

First Financial Construction Loan 3,113,876             -                           

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES FOR

General Fund (1,889,800)           (1,065,136)               

FUND EQUITY

RESTRICTED

     Net Assets Reserved for Debt service-Restricted (5,183,606)           (1,428,264)               

     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                963,631                    

COMMITTED -                           

     Net Assets-Property and Equipment-Committed 15,648,025           7,091,887                 

     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 678,112                678,112                    

     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions -                       2,136,013                 

     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,472,221             1,500,000                 

     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                516,833                    

ASSIGNED -                           

     Reserved for Workers' Compensation-Assigned 274,409                274,409                    

     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve -Assigned 12,332                 -                           

     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles-Assigned 100,000                100,000                    

     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (607,292)              (549,129)                  

UNASSIGNED

     Unrestricted and Undesignated 3,402,135             2,331,257                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 22,699,520$         14,740,515$             

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

For the Month Ended October 31, 2016

124



MONTH OF YTD
INCOME: October 2016 October 2016

Local Revenue Sources 149,020                  257,911                  

Earned Income 1,192,701               2,347,981               

General Revenue-Contract 1,283,100               2,614,669               

TOTAL INCOME 2,624,821$             5,220,562$             

EXPENSES:

Salaries 1,321,387               2,717,173               

Employee Benefits 263,407                  530,536                  

Medication Expense 43,304                    109,636                  

Travel-Board/Staff 47,533                    87,934                    

Building Rent/Maintenance 19,167                    55,578                    

Consultants/Contracts 477,282                  966,182                  

Other Operating Expenses 222,821                  432,124                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,394,901$             4,899,162$             

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 229,920$                321,400$                

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles, Building 174,429                  174,429                  

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 49,865                    95,630                    

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 224,293$                270,059$                

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,619,194$             5,169,221$             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 5,627$                    51,341$                  

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 49,865                    95,630                    

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 49,865                    95,630                    

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

For the Month Ended October 2016
and Year To Date as of October 2016

125



YTD APPROVED Increase

October 2016 BUDGET (Decrease)

INCOME:

Local Revenue Sources 257,911                   227,049                    30,862               

Earned Income 2,347,981                2,292,362                 55,619               

General Revenue-Contract 2,614,669                2,600,211                 14,458               

TOTAL INCOME 5,220,562$              5,119,622$               100,940$           

EXPENSES:

Salaries 2,717,173                2,807,548                 (90,375)              

Employee Benefits 530,536                   573,221                    (42,685)              

Medication Expense 109,636                   117,002                    (7,366)               

Travel-Board/Staff 87,934                     75,405                      12,529               

Building Rent/Maintenance 55,578                     41,332                      14,246               

Consultants/Contracts 966,182                   968,434                    (2,252)               

Other Operating Expenses 432,124                   438,286                    (6,162)               

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,899,162$              5,021,228$               (122,066)$          

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 321,400$                 98,394$                    223,006$           

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 174,429                   24,718                      149,711             

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 95,630                     70,741                      24,889               

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 270,059$                 95,459$                    174,600$           

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,169,221$              5,116,687$               52,534$             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 51,341$                   2,935$                      48,406$             

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 95,630                     70,741                      24,889               

  

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 95,630                     70,741                      24,889               

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budget
Year to Date as of October 2016

126



MONTH OF APPROVED Increase
INCOME: October 2016 BUDGET (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 149,020                    120,483                28,537                

Earned Income 1,192,701                 1,138,297             54,404                

General Revenue-Contract 1,283,100                 1,261,782             21,318                

TOTAL INCOME 2,624,821$               2,520,562$           104,259$            

EXPENSES:

Salaries 1,321,387                 1,396,277             (74,890)               

Employee Benefits 263,407                    286,613                (23,206)               

Medication Expense 43,304                      58,501                  (15,197)               

Travel-Board/Staff 47,533                      40,201                  7,332                  

Building Rent/Maintenance 19,167                      13,416                  5,751                  

Consultants/Contracts 477,282                    484,218                (6,936)                 

Other Operating Expenses 222,821                    220,633                2,188                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,394,901$               2,499,859$           (104,958)$           

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 229,920$                  20,703$                209,217$            

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 174,429                    12,359                  162,070              

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 49,865                      35,371                  14,494                

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 224,293$                  47,730$                176,563$            

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,619,194$               2,547,589$           71,605$              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 5,627$                      (27,027)$               32,654$              

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 49,865                      35,371                  14,494                

 

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 49,865                      35,371                  14,494                

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budget
For the Month Ended October 2016

127



YTD YTD Increase

INCOME: October 2016 October 2015 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 257,911                          657,447                    (399,536)            

Earned Income 2,347,981                       2,208,111                 139,870             

General Revenue-Contract 2,614,669                       2,362,871                 251,798             

TOTAL INCOME 5,220,562$                     5,228,429$               (7,867)$              

EXPENSES:  

Salaries 2,717,173                       2,612,758                 104,415             

Employee Benefits 530,536                          485,849                    44,687               

Medication Expense 109,636                          94,049                      15,587               

Travel-Board/Staff 87,934                            80,388                      7,546                 

Building Rent/Maintenance 55,578                            65,750                      (10,172)              

Consultants/Contracts 966,182                          830,922                    135,260             

Other Operating Expenses 432,124                          459,278                    (27,154)              

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,899,162$                     4,628,994$               270,168$           

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 321,400$                        599,435$                  (278,035)$          

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 174,429                          459,695                    (285,266)            

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 95,630                            70,644                      24,986               

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 270,059$                        530,339$                  (260,280)$          

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,169,221$                     5,159,333$               9,888$               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 51,341$                          69,096$                    (17,755)$            

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 95,630                            70,644                      24,986               

-                    

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 95,630                            70,644                      24,986               

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

With October 2015 Comparative Data
Year to Date as of October 2016

128



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase

INCOME: October 2016 October 2015 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 149,020                     544,394                    (395,374)                

Earned Income 1,192,701                  1,107,519                 85,182                    

General Revenue-Contract 1,283,100                  1,215,057                 68,043                    

TOTAL INCOME 2,624,821$                2,866,970$               (242,149)$               

 

Salaries 1,321,387                  1,304,566                 16,821                    

Employee Benefits 263,407                     247,192                    16,215                    

Medication Expense 43,304                       45,905                      (2,601)                    

Travel-Board/Staff 47,533                       39,979                      7,554                     

Building Rent/Maintenance 19,167                       20,865                      (1,698)                    

Consultants/Contracts 477,282                     430,045                    47,237                    

Other Operating Expenses 222,821                     251,372                    (28,551)                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,394,901$                2,339,924$               54,977$                  

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 229,920$                   527,046$                  (297,126)$               

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 174,429                     442,060                    (267,631)                

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 49,865                       35,322                      14,543                    

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 224,293$                   477,382$                  (253,089)$               

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,619,194$                2,817,306$               (198,112)$               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 5,627$                       49,664$                    (44,037)$                

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 49,865                       35,322                      14,543                    

-                         

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 49,865                       35,322                      14,543                    

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

With October 2015 Comparative Data
For the Month Ended October 2016

129



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase
INCOME: October 2016 September 2016 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 149,020                       108,891                40,128                     

Earned Income 1,192,701                    1,151,480             41,221                     

General Revenue-Contract 1,283,100                    1,331,569             (48,469)                    

TOTAL INCOME 2,624,821$                  2,591,940$           32,881$                   

EXPENSES:

Salaries 1,321,387                    1,395,786             (74,399)                    

Employee Benefits 263,407                       267,129                (3,721)                      

Medication Expense 43,304                         66,332                  (23,028)                    

Travel-Board/Staff 47,533                         40,401                  7,131                       

Building Rent/Maintenance 19,167                         36,411                  (17,245)                    

Consultants/Contracts 477,282                       488,899                (11,617)                    

Other Operating Expenses 222,821                       209,303                13,519                     

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,394,901$                  2,504,261$           (109,360)$                

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 229,920$                     87,679$                142,241$                 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 174,429                       -                        174,429                   

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 49,865                         45,766                  4,099                       

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 224,293$                     45,766$                178,528$                 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,619,194$                  2,550,027$           69,168$                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 5,627$                         41,914$                (36,287)$                  

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 49,865                         45,766                  4,099                       

 

Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses 49,865                         45,766                  4,099                       

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary

With September 2016 Comparative Data
For the Month Ended October 2016

130



YTD YTD YTD YTD YTD

Mental Other Agency Approved 

Health IDD Services Total Budget Increase

INCOME: October 2016 October 2016 October 2016 October 2016 October 2016 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 316,085                    27,681                        (85,854)                       257,911                      227,049                   30,862                

Earned Income 619,061                    1,044,344                   684,576                      2,347,981                   2,292,362                55,619                

General Revenue-Contract 2,264,127                 350,542                      2,614,669                   2,600,211                14,458                

TOTAL INCOME 3,199,273$               1,422,567$                 598,722$                    5,220,561$                 5,119,622$              100,939$            

EXPENSES:

Salaries 1,742,690 534,464                      440,018                      2,717,172                   2,807,548                (90,376)              

Employee Benefits 334,703                    115,168                      80,665                        530,536                      573,221                   (42,685)              

Medication Expense 94,128                      -                              15,508                        109,636                      117,002                   (7,366)                

Travel-Board/Staff 51,966                      23,668                        12,299                        87,934                        75,405                     12,529                

Building Rent/Maintenance 37,816                      11,827                        5,935                          55,578                        41,332                     14,246                

Consultants/Contracts 388,446                    551,376                      26,359                        966,182                      968,434                   (2,252)                

Other Operating Expenses 241,309                    109,962                      80,853                        432,124                      438,286                   (6,162)                

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,891,058$               1,346,465$                 661,637$                    4,899,162$                 5,021,228$              (122,066)$          

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over

Expenses before Capital Expenditures 308,215$                  76,102$                      (62,915)$                     321,399$                    98,394$                   223,005$            

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 90,358                      38,340                        45,730                        174,429                      24,718                     149,711              

Capital Outlay-Debt Service 54,941 13,375                        27,314                        95,630                        70,741                     24,889                

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 145,299$                  51,715$                      73,044$                      270,059$                    95,459$                   174,600$            

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,036,357$               1,398,180$                 734,681$                    5,169,221$                 5,116,687$              52,534$              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

Expenses 162,916$                  24,387$                      (135,959)$                   51,341$                      2,935$                     48,405$              

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:

Debt Service 54,941                      13,375                        27,314                        95,630                        70,741                     (15,800)              

-                              -                              -                              -                           -                     

 Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over 

Expenses 54,941                      13,375                        27,314                        95,630                        70,741                     (15,800)              

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE
Revenue and Expense Summary by Service Type 

Compared to Budget
Year To Date as of October 2016

131



$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE

Income and Expense

including Capital Expenditures

Income

Expense

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16

132



$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

TRI-COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE

Income after Expense

including Captial Expenditures

-$150,000

-$100,000

-$50,000

$0

$50,000

Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16

133



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve NISH Contract Termination 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
As reported at the October Board meeting, we have been reviewing the viability of keeping 
the National Industries for the Severely Handicapped (NISH) contracts at the reduced 
contract amounts.   
 
For many years, Tri-County has provided grounds and custodial services to the Huntsville 
and Conroe Army Bases.  These services are provided by contract agreement through U.S. 
AbilityOne Commission. As a part of these contracts, we are required to employ individuals 
with significant disabilities to provide these services.  These contracts designate the wage to 
be paid to the employees as well as an additional amount for fringe benefits. 
 
Over the years, the combined contracts have fluctuated depending on the actual services 
provided, from $165,914 to as high as $199,426.  The proposed new total contract amount 
of all four contracts will be $106,080.12.  With this significant decrease, Tri-County will have 
to cover approximately $95,000 in wages and fringe benefits in order to provide the 
reduced scope of services.  Basically, we have to maintain the current staffing structure that 
is made up of individuals to provide oversight to the employees with disabilities.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
More Information will be Provided at the Board Meeting 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve the Termination of the NISH Contract 
 

 

 

134



 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approve the Sale of  ICF/IID Licenses 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 
 

This agenda item is to follow-up from the October 27, 2016 Board meeting 
regarding the sale of Intermediate Care Facility (ICF/IID) licenses. 
 

Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare has been working with our consultant, David Southern, to 
sell Tri-County’s eight (8) ICF/IID licenses.  In addition to the licenses, Tri-County owns the 
eight (8) homes associated with these licenses; three (3) of these homes are in 
Montgomery County, four (4) are in Liberty County and one (1) is in Walker County.  
 

There are two (2) companies that have made an offer to purchase these eight (8) ICF/IID 
licenses, D&S Community Services and Educare of Texas (ResCare).   

 D&S Community Services has offered $924,000 for the licenses. 
 Educare of Texas (ResCare) has offered $960,000 for the licenses. 

 

If D&S is selected, they will have additional costs associated with purchasing vehicles, 
setting up a Conroe Day Habilitation program and purchasing home furnishings.  Due to 
these additional costs, they have indicated that $924,000, or $19,250 per license, is the 
highest bid they can make.   
 

Educare has offered $960,000 for the 48 licenses, or $20,000 per license. Since Educare is 
the current provider of services to these consumers, the transition process for these homes 
would be less complex administratively and would likely be seamless for the consumers.   
 

Neither of these organizations is interested in purchasing the properties associated with the 
licenses, but both are willing to lease these homes.  Leasing provides advantage to the 
organization in cost reporting.  Scioto Properties, LLC, has provided Tri-County with a letter 
of intent to purchase the eight (8) homes at appraised value assuming that the providers 
are willing to lease the property.  Both Educare and D&S are willing to lease these 
properties from Scioto.  Scioto will allow us to choose the appraiser for the properties.  
 
The Board requested staff provide additional information about the potential bidders for the 
sale.  Additional information was gathered and is included in the attached summary.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 
 

Bid Proposals from D&S and Educare 
Letter of Intent from Scioto 
Additional Requested Information 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

Approve the Sale of ICF/IID Licenses, the Sale of Physical Property to Scioto, 
and Authorize Executive Director to Execute All Documents on Behalf of Tri-
County Behavioral Healthcare, with Consultation from Jackson Walker 
 

135



 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal to Tri- County Services 

10  /14/2016 

 
 

 
 

136



137



Implementation Process 
Ensuring a seamless transition for all stakeholders is our ultimate goal when integrating a new 
program into our own.  Whereas we look for processes to improve and ways to increase quality, 
we also recognize the procedures in place that are working well and welcome new ideas and 
systems we can adopt for optimal service delivery.   Along with our Executive Managers being 
heavily involved throughout the entire transition, we also have an implementation team that is 
dedicated to ensuring a successful integration.  Some of the highlights of our processes include: 

 

Diligence 

o Our team completes meaningful diligence to evaluate current service delivery, 
understand processes and procedures, and identify any potential pain points 
that can come with change.    

o We establish a formal implementation plan used to track and manage all of the 
steps required to ensure a successful transition. 

Communication  

o We hold several meetings with individuals, family members, guardians, 
employees, service coordinators, and other key stakeholders to keep everyone 
informed and address any concerns/reservations. 

o We offer one-on-one meetings to anyone that expresses a desire to meet 
privately. 

Execution 

o Our Management & Implementation teams are “on the ground” during 
integration. 

o We conduct weekly calls/meetings before and after closing to ensure that our 
implementation plan is still on track. 

o Our seasoned Quality Assurance team assesses the program after full integration 
to ensure program standards and compliance are met.   
 
 

 

 

 

 

138



Why collaborate with D&S?  
D&S has changed significantly over the past 25 years going from an entrepreneurial-style 
company to a company with an Executive Management team that holds years of experience.  
Through their leadership and others on the management team, D&S has built an infrastructure 
that is unlike any other.  Some differentiators of D&S include in-house teams of QA, Behavior 
Supports, Healthcare, and Training, which are all located here in Texas.  These differences and 
increased focus on quality have helped make D&S a leading provider of IDD services in three 
states.  D&S is excited to expand these services to the individuals of the Tri-County family.    

A little info on a few key members of our leadership team……. 

 

When President & CEO, Mickey Atkins, joined D&S in 2006 he had a vision 
for the company and knew that to properly support the individuals served, 
it required getting the right team of professionals on his management 
team.  He selectively on-boarded professionals that he knew could help 
make D&S a leading provider of IDD services.  With his team in place, it 
afforded Mickey the opportunity to serve on numerous boards and 
committees across all three states while also working on legislative 
initiatives to help shape the future of service delivery.   

 

One of those select professionals is Robert Ham, VP of Operations and 
Chief Compliance Officer.  Robert joined D&S in 2011 after a tenured past 
as the Director of Brenham State Supported Living Center and CFO for 
Bluebonnet Trails Community Center.  He has dedicated his life to 
supporting individuals with IDD and advocating on their behalf.  Robert 
also works on issues requiring legislative action and serves on numerous 
boards and committees to improve the services of the individuals we 
support.                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                 
Jon Moore joined D&S in 1998 and has been a big part of D&S’ evolution 
over the years.  He started out as a Supported Employment Supervisor 
and was quickly promoted into positions with increasing responsibility.  
His experience as a QIDP and a supervisor of QIDP’s positioned him well 
for his next role as Regional Director of Field Operations for half of Texas.  
His commitment to ensuring the success of those we support in the 
community comes through in all that he does.  Jon provides constant 
support to the offices and professionals that he oversees and is always 
striving for the highest quality of services and supports.   

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



Additional Information on D&S: 

On November 16th, Kathy Foster and Kelly Shropshire met with Mickey Atkins, President 
and CEO of D&S Community Services, and Robert Ham, Chief Compliance Officer and 

Vice-President of Texas Operations. 

The Board was concerned about a report that D&S has been decertified as a provider in 
the Houston area in 2005. Staff received clarification during the meeting that their ICF 
programs were not decertified but their Houston-based Home and Community-based 
Services (HCS) program were. In May of 2005, D&S did ‘voluntarily close’ their Harris 
County business as a result of uncorrected audit items and decertification.  This came 
during a period of transition at D&S as the founders of the company were in the 
process of selling the majority of the company. At that time, the Harris County market 

represented 15% of their business.    

Several steps were taken after decertification to ensure higher quality services 

including:  

 9/2005 - they hired a Quality Assurance (QA) director to develop a QA team to 
monitor contracts  

 3/2006 - Mickey Atkins was hired to replace founders as management of 
company. The board’s goal was that he turn D&S into a professionally run 
organization. 

 2009 - D&S applied and now has an active license in Harris County.  
o However, they do not serve anyone in Harris County and are really not 

focused on expanding back into this market.    

 2007 - 2016 focus has been on development of Executive Management Team 
and Enhancement of quality systems.  

o D&S currently has nine (9) full time Texas QA specialists;  
o One (1) Texas Health Services Director;  
o Two (2) Texas Health Service Coordinators (assist with individuals 

maintaining Social Security Benefits). 
o In addition to self-audits to improve their quality of care and audit 

outcomes, they offer management compensation based on results and 

budget.  

o QA is reviewed with the Board quarterly.  

 

 If the rate of pay is similar to that of ResCare, how is the quality of care any 

better? 

o They report ‘showing respect’ to their staff and keeping them informed of 

what to expect from the company, starting in new employee orientation. 

o They offer a higher hourly rate of pay to direct care staff ($8.00 an hour 

vs. minimum wage of $7.35). 

o They offer house managers a higher rate of pay and bonuses based on 

several factors tied to the operations and budget of the home.  

147



 

 As an example of the evidence of their improvement, D&S cited the success of 

their Tennessee program.  D&S has been approached by the state when a 

provider is being closed down to assume operations of the services and, as a 

result, they now have eight (8) offices in Knoxville.   

148



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Ratify FY 2017 Lifetime Homecare Services 
Contract 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
In June of last year, Tri-County received a contract amendment from the Department of 
Aging and Disability Services (DADS), now transitioned to the Health and Human Services 
Commission (HHSC), which required the Center to hire a Crisis Intervention Specialist to 
provide out-of-home crisis respite services for persons with intellectual or developmental 
disabilities.  Crisis respite is a short-term service provided in a 24-hour supervised 
environment for individuals with demonstrating a crisis that cannot be stabilized in a less 
intensive setting. 
 
Out-of-home crisis respite is required to be provided in a setting for which the state 
provides oversight. Lifetime Homecare Services is a Home and Community-based Services 
(HCS) provider that is willing to utilize space in their licensed homes for IDD crises.  Tri-
County was referred to Lifetime by another Center, Texana, which is located south of Harris 
County.   
 
Staff attempted to establish a contract with Cypress Creek Hospital for more intensive crisis 
respite services and researched other options for respite services.  However, at this time, 
Lifetime Homecare Services is our only willing provider for this service. The Lifetime 
Homecare Services contract for FY 2017 is $50,000.   
 
In November, one of our clients needed to utilize this contract before it had been to the 
Board for approval.  Evan Roberson spoke with the Board Chair who approved signing the 
contract which will need to be ratified by the Board at today’s meeting. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Contract Available for Review at the Board Meeting 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Ratify the FY 2017 Lifetime Homecare Services Contract for IDD Crisis Respite 
Services 
 

 

149



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Reappoint Independence Communities, Inc. Board 
of Directors 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

  
December 8, 2016 

Background Information:  

 
Mr. Leonard Peck, Mrs. Barbara Duren, and Mr. Len George serve on the Independence 
Communities, Inc. Board and have terms expiring in January 2017.  
 
Mr. Peck, Mrs. Duren, and Mr. George have been contacted and are willing to serve an 
additional two-year term, which would expire in January 2019. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Reappoint Mr. Peck, Mrs. Duren, and Mr. George to Serve on the Independence 
Communities, Inc. Board of Directors for an Additional Two-Year Term Expiring 
in January 2019 
 

 

 

150



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Reappoint Montgomery Supported Housing, Inc. 
Board of Directors  
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
Ms. Sharon Walker and Mr. William ‘Bill’ Bonito serve on the Montgomery Supported 
Housing, Inc. Board and have terms expiring in January 2017.   
 
Ms. Walker has been contacted and is willing to serve an additional two-year term, which 
would expire in January 2019. Unfortunately, Mr. Bonito has decided not to serve an 
additional term at this time.  We are currently seeking an additional member to fill his place. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Reappoint Ms. Walker to Serve on the Montgomery Supported Housing, Inc. 
Board of Directors for an Additional Two-Year Term Expiring in January 2019 
 

 

151



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Reappoint Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. Board 
of Directors 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
Mrs. Barbara Duren and Mrs. Margie Powell serve on the Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. 
Board and have terms expiring in January 2017.   
 
Mrs. Duren and Mrs. Powell have been contacted and are willing to serve an additional two-
year term, which would expire in January 2019. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Reappoint Mrs. Duren and Mrs. Powell to Serve on the Cleveland Supported 
Housing, Inc. Board of Directors for an Additional Two-Year Term Expiring in 
January 2019 
 

 

152



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Board of Trustees Unit Financial Statement for 
October 2016 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
October 2016 Board of Trustees Unit Financial Statement 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

153



October 2016 October 2016 YTD YTD
Actuals Budgeted Variance Actual Budget Variance Percent Budget

Revenues
Allocated Revenue 2,599.00$        2,599.00$        -$                 5,198.00$            5,198.00$        -$                      100.00% 31,195.00$      

Total Revenue 2,599.00$        2,599.00$        -$                 5,198.00$            5,198.00$        -$                      100.00% 31,195.00$      

Expenses
Food Items 285.44$           200.00$            85.44$             505.09$               400.00$           105.09$                126.27% 2,400.00$        
Insurance-Worker Compensation 5.27$               16.00$              (10.73)$            12.30$                 32.00$             (19.70)$                38.44% 200.00$            
Legal Fees 1,500.00$        1,500.00$        -$                 3,000.00$            3,000.00$        -$                      100.00% 18,000.00$      
Postage-Express Mail -$                 5.00$                (5.00)$              -$                     10.00$             (10.00)$                0.00% 50.00$              
Supplies-Office 12.00$             21.00$              (9.00)$              12.00$                 42.00$             (30.00)$                0.00% 245.00$            
Training -$                 300.00$            (300.00)$          -$                     600.00$           (600.00)$              0.00% 3,600.00$        
Travel - Local -$                 75.00$              (75.00)$            75.50$                 150.00$           (74.50)$                50.33% 900.00$            
Travel - Non-local Mileage/Air 164.00$           150.00$            14.00$             249.70$               300.00$           (50.30)$                83.23% 1,800.00$        
Travel - Non-local Hotel 162.15$           250.00$            (87.85)$            353.50$               500.00$           (146.50)$              70.70% 3,000.00$        
Travel - Meals -$                 84.00$              (84.00)$            56.31$                 168.00$           (111.69)$              33.52% 1,000.00$        

Total Expenses 2,128.86$        2,601.00$        (472.14)$          4,264.40$            5,202.00$        (937.60)$              81.98% 31,195.00$      

Total Revenue minus Expenses 470.14$           (2.00)$             472.14$          933.60$              (4.00)$             937.60$               18.02% -$                

Unit Financial Statement
FY 2017

154



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Building Consolidation Update 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
As a standing information item on the agenda, Tri-County staff, Mike Duncum and/or 
contractors will continue to provide updates to the Board regarding progress made 
throughout the construction phase until we have officially moved into the new consolidated 
facility in Montgomery County. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Project Pictures 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

155



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Floor 

156



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Second Floor 

157



Second Floor 

 

 

 

 

 

158



 

 

 

 

 

Second Floor Work Room 
 

Third Floor Board Room 
 

159



 

 

 

 

 

 

Third Floor 

160



 

 

 

 

 

Third Floor 

161



 

 

 

 
Elevator 

162



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. Update 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date: 

 
December 8, 2016 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. Board (CSHI) held a face-to-face meeting at the 
property on December 2, 2016 where the committee reviewed project status updates and 
reviewed the list of outstanding warranty items.   
 
The CSHI Board along with Tri-County staff have been working diligently with Grant Cook, 
Construction Manager, to correct the remainder of the warranty items needing repairs.  
Since the last update to the Board, the majority of warranty items, including bathroom 
drainage issues, have been corrected and Cook Construction is working with a contractor to 
address unresolved adhesive issues with some areas of the flooring.  Due to continued 
concerns related to drainage on the property following heavy rains, Tri-County staff met 
with Grant Cook on October 7, 2016 to discuss possible solutions and Grant is expected to 
follow-up in the coming weeks with recommendations for improvement.   
 
The property remains at full capacity and continues to process incoming applications that 
are received.  There are currently fourteen (14) approved applications on the waiting list.   
 
As of September 2016, the payable to Tri-County is $36,538.02 and is currently expected to 
decrease to $29,895.00 following close-out of the construction related journal entries.  The 
property has a net loss for the period of $66.52 but remains in good financial standing year-
to-date with a profit of $7,146.47.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

163



 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

January 26th, 2017 – Board Meeting 
 Approve Minutes from December 8, 2016 Board Meeting 

 From the Heart Presentation 

 Community Resources Report 

 Consumer Services Reports for November & December 2016 

 Program Updates 

 FY 2017 Goals & Objectives Progress Report 

 1st Quarter FY 2017 Corporate Compliance & Quality Management Report 

 2nd Quarter FY 2017 Corporate Compliance Training 

 Medicaid 1115 Transformation Waiver Project Status Report 

 Personnel Reports for November & December 2016 

 Texas Council Risk Management Fund Claims Summary as of December 
2016 

 Approve November & December 2016 Financial Statements 

 Approve FY 2016 Independent Financial Audit 

 1st Quarter FY 2017 Investment Report 

 Board of Trustees Unit Financial Statements for November & December 
2016 

 Building Consolidation Update 

 Other Business Committee Issues 
 

February 23rd, 2017 – Board Meeting 
 Approve Minutes from January 26, 2017 Board Meeting 

 Longevity Recognition Presentations 

 Community Resources Report 

 Consumer Services Report for January 2017 

 Program Updates 

 Program Presentation 

 Personnel Report for January 2017 

 Texas Council Risk Management Fund Claims Summary for January 2017 

 Approve January 2017 Financial Statements 

 401(a) Retirement Plan Account Review 

 Board of Trustees Unit Financial Statement for January 2017 

 Other Business Committee Issues 
 

164


	Board Meeting 12-8-2016
	Agenda
	Board Minutes 10-27-2016
	ED Report
	CFO Report
	Program Committee
	Community Resources Report-Cover
	Community Resources Report-Backup

	Consumer Services Report-Cover
	Consumer Services Report-Backup

	Program Updates-Cover
	Program Updates-Backup


	Executive Committee
	Approve Revisions to General Admin Board Policies-Cover
	C.3-Administration by Board  (markup)-Backup
	C.4-Program Accreditation-Certification (markup)-Backup
	C.7-Meetings of the Board of Trustees (markup)-Backup
	C.8-Preparation of Agenda (markup)-Backup
	C.9-Appointment of Executive Director (markup)-Backup
	C.10-Records Retention (markup)-Backup
	C.11-Establishment and Maintenance of the Manual of Board Policies (markup)-Backup
	C.13-Goverment Relations (markup)-Backup
	C.14-Tri-County Relationship with Non-Profit Corporations (markup)-Backup
	C.17-Availability-Accessibility of Services (markup)-Backup
	C.18-Planning Network Advisory Committees (markup)-Backup
	C.21-Utilization of Volunteers at TCBHC (markup)-Backup
	C.22-Environmental Quality and Safety (markup)-Backup
	C.23-Services to Board, Employees, and Families (markup)-Backup
	C.25-Contraband Items (markup)-Backup
	C.26-Local Planning (markup)-Backup

	Personnel Report-Cover
	Personnel Report-Backup

	TCRMF Claims Summary-Cover
	TCRMF Claims Summary-Backup

	TX Council Quarterly Update-Cover
	Sharon's Handout of Key Highlights-Backup
	TX Council Quarterly Update-Backup


	Business Committee
	Approve October 2016 Financials-Cover
	1. October 2016 FY17 Narrative.pdf
	2. Balance Fund - TM-LM
	3. Balance by Fund
	4. Revenue & Expense - TM-YTD
	5. Revenue & Expense - YTD-Budget
	6. Revenue & Expense - TM-Budget
	7. Revenue & Expense - YTD TY-LY
	8. Revenue & Expense - Month TY-LY
	9. Revenue & Expense - TM-LM
	10. Income & Expense by Service Type
	11. Income & Expense Graph
	12. Income after Expense Graph

	Approve NISH Contract Termination-Cover
	ICFIID Sale-Cover
	ICFIID Dossier, D&S-Backup
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Device (003).pdf
	Presentation for Tri-County.pdf

	ICFIID Offer, Educare-Backup
	ICFIID Sale Letter of Intent, Scioto-Backup
	ICFIID Sale-Additional Information (Kathy)-Backup

	Ratify Lifetime Homecare Services-Cover
	ICI Board Reappointment-Cover
	MSHI Board Reappointment-Cover
	CSHI Board Reappointment-Cover
	Board Unit Financial-Cover
	Board Unit Financial-Backup

	Building Consolidation Update-Cover
	Building Consolidation Update-Backup

	CSHI Update-Cover

	Upcoming Meetings



